
AGENDA

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING
Date: Friday, 9 October 2020
Time: 10.00am
Venue: Virtual Meeting Via Skype*

Membership:

Councillors Derek Carnell, Carole Jackson and Lee McCall.

Quorum = 3 

Pages
Information for the Public
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how 
to join the meeting will be added to the website after 4pm on Thursday 8 
October 2020. 

Privacy Statement

Swale Borough Council (SBC) is committed to protecting the privacy and 
security of your personal information. As data controller we ensure that 
processing is carried out in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 
and the General Data Protection Regulations. In calling to join the meeting 
your telephone number may be viewed solely by those Members and 
Officers in attendance at the Skype meeting and will not be shared further. 
No other identifying information will be made available through your 
joining to the meeting. In joining the meeting you are providing the 
Council with your consent to process your telephone number for the 
duration of the meeting. Your telephone number will not be retained after 
the meeting is finished.

If you have any concerns or questions about how we look after your
personal information or your rights as an individual under the
Regulations, please contact the Data Protection Officer by email at
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk or by calling 01795 417179.

1. Apologies for Absence and Confirmation of Substitutes

2. Notification of Chairman and Outline of Procedure

3. Declarations of Interest

Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for  themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 

Public Document Pack



person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the existence 
of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI interest, 
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

(c) Where it is possible that a fair-minded and informed observer, 
having considered the facts would conclude that there was a real 
possibility that the Member might be predetermined or biased the 
Member should declare their predetermination or bias and then leave the 
meeting while that item is considered.

Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as 
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.

Part B Report for the Licensing Sub-Committee to decide

4. Application for a new Premises Licence

To consider a new premises license for Neptune’s Cafe, Shellness Road, 
Leysdown.

3 - 56

Issued on Monday, 28 September 2020

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available 
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or 
to arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please 
contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of this Committee, please visit 
www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT



Swale Borough Council

Report to:                  Licensing Sub – Committee (Under the Licensing Act 2003)

Date: 9TH October 2020

Report Author: Christina Hills – Licensing Officer 

Subject: Neptune’s Beach Café, Shellness Road, Leysdown on Sea, Sheerness, 
Kent ME12 4RH

Purpose and summary of report:

To consider an application, to which representations have been made, for a new Premises 
Licence application under the Licensing Act 2003 – application reference number 
SHE/SWALE/189/0752

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to determine the application and decide whether to grant a licence. 
Members asked to consider the application on its merits.

Background papers: The Licensing Act 2003
Home Office Guidance Documents issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 as amended
Swale Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy

The Licensing Act 2003 Act requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ 
that sets out the policies the Council will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives 
when making a decision on applications made under the Act.  The Policy will be available at 
the meeting for reference purposes.

Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out their 
functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 
182.  The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that 
may arise.  Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and considered the 
Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do so.   However, as the licensing 
authority is under a duty to have regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for 
its departure from it.  This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from 
the Guidance result in a determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review. 
Should the need arise the Guidance will be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

The Licensing Authority must, under the Act refer any application for hearing to the Licensing 
Panel, if relevant representations are made by a responsible authority or other person. 
A copy of the Council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to an 
application, along with a copy of the Hearings Regulations has been circulated to all parties 
prior to the meeting.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

Report Title: 

Application for: A Premises Licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

Purpose of the report:

The report advises Members of an application for a Premises Licence to be granted under 
the Licensing Act 2003, made by Henry Eakin, in respect of  premises at Neptune’s Beach 
Café, Shellness Road, Leysdown on Sea, Sheerness, Kent ME12 4RH (Appendix A) in 
respect of which (5) representations have been received from members of the public (1) by 
the parish council and (1) from a ward Councillor (Appendix B).

1. Issues to be decided

Members are asked to determine whether to:

(i) grant a licence subject to conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule modified 
to such an extent as considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and any mandatory conditions, 

(ii) grant a licence but excluding any of the licensable activities applied for, 

(iii) grant a licence but refusing to specify a premises supervisor,
  
(iv) reject the application.

2. Background

The Licensing Act requires the Council as licensing authority to carry out its various licensing 
functions so as to promote the following four licensing objectives:

(i) the prevention of crime and disorder;
(ii) the protection of public safety;
(iii) the prevention of public nuisance;
(iv) the protection of children from harm

3. The Application

3.1 On 18 August 2020 an application was made which was fully complete, from Mr 
Henry Eakin for the grant of a Premises Licence under section17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 in respect of premises at Neptune’s Beach Café, Shellness Road, Leysdown on  
Sea, Sheerness, Kent ME12 4RH. The application is for the sale of alcohol and 
recorded music.  The proposed hours of the licensable activities are as follows:

Sale of Alcohol
Monday to Thursday 10:00 – 23:00
Friday 10:00 – 24:00
Saturday and Sunday 10:00 – 01:00

Recorded Music – May to September each year indoors and outdoors
Monday to Sunday 16:00 – 22:00

Members will be aware the recorded music that under the provisions of the 
Deregulation Act 2015 recorded music is deregulated between the hours of 08:00 

Page 4



3

and 23:00 for audiences of less than 500 and therefore is not something that can be 
considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee.

The opening hours for the premises will be the same as that for the sale of alcohol 
from May to September.  From October until March the premises will close at 18:00 
and therefore the proposed licensable activities will cease at that time also.

The applicant also completed section 14 of the application form relating to late night 
refreshment which is the sale of hot food between the hours of 23:00 and 05:00.  
However, as he intends the sale of hot food at the premises to stop at 23:00 this 
would not be included on any granted premises licence as it is not within the 
licensable hours.

3.2 A copy of the application, which includes the operating schedule that details the steps 
the applicant intends to take to address the licensing objectives is shown at Appendix 
A.

3.3 The application has been correctly advertised in the local press on 26 August 2020.  
The consultation period ended on 16 September 2020.  The required public notice was 
correctly displayed during the whole of the consultation period.

3.4 The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor is Henry Eakin.

3.5 Representations

3.6.1 Representations from responsible authorities:

 Kent and Medway Fire & Rescue Service – No representations
 Kent County Council Trading Standards – No representations
 Kent County Council Services Children and Families – No representations
 Kent County Council Public Health – No representations
 Environmental Health – Swale Borough Council – Have made no representations 

however they seek the attachment of the following conditions to assist in the 
promotion of the licensing objectives:

 Kent Police – Have made no representations however they seek the attachment of 
the following conditions to assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives:

Condition 1

All persons who sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.  

Training should take place within six weeks of employment 

1. Any new employees will be supervised until the training has taken place.  
2. Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every six months or earlier 

if required due to changes of legislation.  
3. Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature, 

content and frequency of all training.  

Page 5



4

4. Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing 
Officer and authorised officers from Swale Council on demand either 
electronically or hard copy.

Condition 2

CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.  

Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits and all 
areas where the sale and supply of alcohol occurs.  

1. Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and 
date stamped, recordings MUST be kept in date order, and kept for a period of 
31 days and handed to Police on demand. 

2.  The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed 
member of staff is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a 
recordable format to the Police and Local Authority on demand.  

3. The recording equipment and discs/tapes shall be kept in a secure environment 
under the control of the DPS or other responsible named individual. 

4.  An operational daily log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, 
indicating the system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any 
failings actions taken are to be recorded.  

5. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises licence 
holder or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer 
immediately (licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)

Condition 3

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to a 
police officer, police licensing officer or council authorised licensing officer. It must 
be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following: 

1.  all crimes reported to the venue 
2.  all ejections of patrons 
3.  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
4.  any incidents of disorder 
5.  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
6.  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
7.  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

Condition 4

The premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor must keep a 
refusal register.  Staff to be trained to complete a refusal book/record immediately 
after the refusal but no later then the end of their shift.  The register must be kept 
on the premises and will detail 

 Day, Date & Time of refusal 

1. Item Refused

Page 6

mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk


5

2. Name or description of person refused sale 
3. Reason for refusal 
4. Each entry is to be checked and signed by the DPS/Licensee no later than 1 

week after the entry has been made.   

The register must be made available for Police, Police Licensing Officer and 
authorised officers from Swale Council on demand either electronically or hard 
copy.

3.6.2 The applicant has agreed to these conditions being imposed on any granted premises 
licence

3.6.3 There have been (5) representation(s) from members of the public as well as (1) 
representation from the parish council and (1) from a ward councillor. These are 
shown at Appendix B.

Responsible 
Authority / Other 

person

Licensing 
Objective

Associated 
Documents

Appendix

Members of the 
Public 

Public Nuisance
Public Safety

Crime and Disorder
Protection of 

Children from Harm 

(5) letters and 
emails of which 1 

email is on behalf of 
a group of residents

B

Parish Council Public Nuisance
Public Safety

Crime and Disorder
Protection of 

Children from Harm 

1 email B

Ward Councillor Public Nuisance
Public Safety

Crime and Disorder
Protection of 

Children from Harm 

1 email B

3.6.4 In an email to the licensing team of 4 September 2020 the applicant has indicated that 
he would be willing to curtail licensing activities at 23:00 each day.  This is shown as Appendix 
C

4. Policy Considerations

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s Guidance apply to this application:

Chapter 2 – The licensing objectives

Chapter 8 – Applications for premises licences

Page 7



6

Chapter 9 – Determining applications

Chapter 10 – Conditions attached to Premises Licences

The following paragraphs of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy apply to this 
application:

Sections 3.1 -3.4, 17.1-8, 17.20-23 – These sections set out the Council’s approach with 
regard to licensing and details other mechanisms to deal with potential problems.

Section 1.1 to 1.4 – These sections set out the four licensing objectives and identifies 
matters that may be relevant to the promotion of each licensing objective.

5.  Determining the application – Options of the Panel

The Panel must, when reaching a decision on the outcome of the application, take into 
account the licensing objectives.  Having had proper regard to the matters above the 
Panel may:

(i) Grant the licence application as applied for;
(ii) Modify the activities or conditions proposed or add any new conditions; 
(iii) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as designated premises supervisor
(iv) Reject the whole or part of the application

5.1  Members of the Licensing Act 2003 – Licensing Sub – Committee are reminded of heir  
duty under the Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1989 to consider the crime and 
disorder implications of their decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to 
co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough. 

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states:

‘’Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each 
authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to 
the likely effect of the exercise of those function on, and the need to do all that is 
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area’’. 

6. Implications Assessment 

The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and 
the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the 
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must 
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /
challenge is increased. 

7. Human Rights

While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance
to the application are: 

 Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life. 

 Article 1 of the First Protocol – Protection of Property 

 Article 6(1) – Right to a fair hearing. 

Page 8



7

 Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 

8. Recommendations 

Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well as against
the relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework.
 

9. List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Application form and plan of premises
Appendix B – Representations (Members of the public, Parish Council, Ward 

     Councillor)against the application
Appendix C – Email from applicant dated 4 September 2020

      Appendix D - Order of proceedings

10. Appeals

      The applicant or any other person (objector) may appeal the Licensing Act 2003 Sub
      Committee’s decision within 21 days beginning with the day on which the Appellant is 
      notified. All/any appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court. Parties should be 
      aware that they MAY incur an Adverse Cost Order should they bring an appeal

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



From: 
Sent: 14 September 2020 23:15
To: Chris Hills
Subject: Objections Neptune Cafe

Hi Chris Hills 

Can you please forward this appeal/objections onto and at the meeting you are 
having with the members of Swale Borough Council tomorrow with regards to 
Neptune Liquor License application. Please add any of the other emails we have 
sent to you, that you feel would be appropriate to our appeal.

o Neptune cafe is located on the sea wall at Shellness Road currently serving 
food and lite refreshment, where families gather for a fun day out where 
children of all ages play in safety on the beach and swim in the sea. This has 
been so for approximately 100 years. 

 We object to the liquor license and the serving of alcohol at Neptune cafe for 
the safety of families/children where alcohol will be served, and this will 
encourage the following to the area: 

 Drinking alcohol and driving, violence, abuse, noise, nuisance, crime and 
disorder, anti-social behaviour, drug abuse. 

 We fear liquor being more freely available and consumed /permitted on the 
premises will encourage behaviour harmful to children and adults in the 
licensed area, and lead to injuries and or accidents on the premises.

 The protection of children from moral, psychological and physical harm. This 
includes protecting children from early exposure to strong language and the 
area developing into an unfriendly family environment that would then become 
a restrictive area for children. Also encouraging increased risk of violence or 
to the safety of people on the premises.

 Neptune Cafe Shellness Road premises does not have disabled toilets.There 
is no local police presence or hospital for over 10 miles and would take over 
30 minutes to assist with any emergency. 

 Safety or satisfactory nature of certain equipment or fixtures as the premises 
are not secure as they have been broken into 5 times this year and property 
on the premises stolen and the premises should comply with all statutory 
safety controls and would suggest the premises have a health and safety plus 
fire inspection/check.

 Council have a responsibility to protect children/families, and ask why are they 
encouraging the sale of alcohol to an area that has always been for families to 
enjoy a beach area in a safe environment.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Hi Chris,

I'm quite confused over the opening times to the car park and toilets, as we operate these ourselves 
- so they open under the hours we choose. If the cafe was open later then the facilities would be 
open later etc. The same team who opens and closes the café also opens and closes the car park.

It must be said however, it is unlikely we would serve until 11pm everyday. It is a very hit and miss 
operation, if its a great warm day then we are incredibly busy and have been open quite late in the 
past however we have also had days where we are closed by midday because of the poor weather.

Kind Regards,
Henry

Henry Eakin
Café Owner

Neptune's Beach Café, Kent, ME12 4RH
T: +44 1795 500096
E: Henry@NeptunesCafe.co.uk | W: NeptunesCafe.co.uk

On Fri, 4 Sep 2020 at 12:24, Chris Hills <ChrisHills@swale.gov.uk> wrote:

Good afternoon Henry

Many thanks for your email it’s much appreciated.

The reduction in hours is appreciated.

If you want to have an outside cinema then the way ahead would be to apply for Temporary Events 
Notices (TEN). You can have 15 of them each year and I can explain the process to you at some later 
date. The beauty of a TEN is that the only consultees are the police and environmental health and 
they would only object if what you proposed was unreasonable or you had a TEN and created a 
noise nuisance which would prevent them from agreeing to any more being granted.

At the moment the objections relate to the opening times of the car park and the toilets which seem 
to be in conflict with the hours that you wish to remain open and operating and other general 
concerns about the sale of alcohol which could be consumed on the premises. In this respect 
perhaps you may wish to consider an on premises licence only so that alcohol could not be sold and 
drunk away from your premises?.

I am trying to liaise with everyone so that a hearing of the Licensing Sub-Committee is not necessary. 
If however I do need to arrange a hearing you will be given all of the representations so that you can 
prepare your case.

Page 49

mailto:Henry@neptunescafe.co.uk
http://www.neptunescafe.co.uk/
mailto:ChrisHills@swale.gov.uk


Let’s hope that is not necessary.

Best regards

Chris

Yours sincerely

Chris Hills

Licensing Officer

Tel: 01795 417286 | Email: chrishills@swale.gov.uk | Website: www.swale.gov.uk

Swale Borough Council | Swale House | East Street | Sittingbourne | Kent | ME10 3HT

From: Henry Eakin [mailto:henry@neptunescafe.co.uk] 
Sent: 04 September 2020 12:16
To: Chris Hills
Subject: Missed Call

Hi Chris,

Just seen your voicemail, I am unfortunately on holiday myself and will struggle to find time for a call 
today.

I have spoken to a few members of the Parish Council, we would be happy to reduce the hours down 
to 11pm everyday instead of the original requested if thats what was necessary - the reason for the 
late night addition was days in August/July etc where we may choose to do an outdoor cinema this 
would obviously require a projector and can only happen once its dark, a 2.5 hour movie for example 
would go on until around midnight for example, we can think of another way to manage this going 
forward.

I do really appreciate you giving me a call, Will we at some point be given the other objections to 
see?

Kind Regards,

Henry

Café Owner

Neptune's Beach Café, Kent, ME12 4RH

Page 50

mailto:chrishills@swale.gov.uk
http://www.swale.gov.uk/
mailto:henry@neptunescafe.co.uk


T: +44 1795 500096

E: Henry@NeptunesCafe.co.uk | W: NeptunesCafe.co.uk

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended 
solely for the use of the individual or entity they are addressed. If you 
have received this email in error please notify postmaster@swale.gov.uk

Page 51

mailto:Henry@neptunescafe.co.uk
http://www.neptunescafe.co.uk/
mailto:postmaster@swale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Making Swale a Better Place 

LICENSING AUTHORITY:
SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-committee Hearing Procedure
Applications for New Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates and Variations to existing 

licences and certificates

1. Introductions

The Chairman will request all those persons participating in the hearing to identify 
themselves or introduce them.

              Members/Officers/Applicant and any representative/Responsible Authorities/any other 
persons (objectors)

2. Procedural Matters

The Chairman will:

i) Confirm that all parties are aware of the sub-committee hearing procedure and that 
each party has a copy of the hearing procedure document.

ii) Confirm that all sub-committee members have pre-read all the papers and any other 
documents contained in the report regarding the hearing.

iii) Explain that the sub-committee will allow all parties to put their case fully and make 
full submissions, within a reasonable time frame.  The procedure will be discussion 
led by the Sub-Committee and  questions will usually be permitted.

iv) Explain that where any person attending the hearing behaves in a disruptive 
manner, the sub-committee may direct that person to leave the hearing (including 
temporarily).  If this happens, the person may give the sub-committee in writing any 
information which the person would have been entitled to give orally.

v) Enquire whether any draft conditions have been agreed between the applicant and 
any of the other parties for the sub-committee to consider.

vi) Enquire whether any parties request to have any witness give evidence at the 
hearing; and if so grant the request unless the request is unreasonable.

vii) Invite the parties, where appropriate, to appoint a spokesperson.

Page 53



3. The Hearing

A) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor or licensing officer to briefly outline the 
application and all representations regarding the application.

B) i) Ask the Applicant (or their representative) to put forward their case 
opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from any Responsible Authority and/or other 
person/members of the subcommittee

iii) Any points of clarification.

C) i) Ask Responsible Authorities (where applicable) to put forward their case.  
Opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses) by the officer 
representing the responsible authority (or their representative).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from :
the Applicant/other Responsible Authorities/other persons/member of the 
Sub-Committee.

iii) Any points of clarification.

D) i) Opening remarks and evidence by the other person/s (or 
spokesperson/representative).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from :
the Applicant, Responsible Authorities, each further other person and sub-
committee  members.

iii) Any points of clarification.

E) Closing Summary

Responsible Authorities/Other Persons/The Applicant

F) End of Hearing

i) The Chairman will ask the members of the sub-committee if they have any 
final questions for any party to the hearing.

ii) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor whether there are any further 
matters to be raised or resolved before the hearing is closed.

iii) The Chairman will bring the hearing to a close and shall declare that the sub-
committee will retire, to private session, to consider the application.

iv) The Chairman will invite the legal advisor to remain with the sub-committee 
during its deliberations to provide any advice required.

Page 54



G) The Decision

The Chairman shall declare in public session:

i) The sub-committee’s determination and indicate that all parties to the 
hearing will receive a copy of the written Determination Notice regarding the 
sub-committee’s determination; and 

ii)  that all parties may appeal against the sub-committee’s decision within 21 
days beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified of the 
Licensing Authority’s written determination.  Appeals must be lodged with 
the Magistrates’ Court.  Parties should be aware that the Magistrates Court 
may make an order with respect to costs on any appeal.

iii) Formally close the meeting.

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Application for a new Premises Licence
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix B objections
	Appendix C
	Appendix D


